
Human Resources 

 

City of Menlo Park  701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  www.menlopark.org 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    

Meeting Date:   6/21/2016 

Staff Report Number:  16-104-CC 

 

Regular Business:  Consider approval of amendments to the 

agreement between the City of Menlo Park and 

Service Employees International Union, Local 521  

 

Recommendation 

Approve amendments to the collective bargaining agreement between the City of Menlo Park and Service 
Employees International Union, Local 521 (SEIU), and authorize the Administrative Services Director to 
execute a Side Letter Agreement which shall expire coterminous with the current Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) on June 30, 2017. 

 

Policy Issues 

This recommendation aligns with the City’s goals of balancing continued fiscal prudence in planning for 
potential impacts of employee retirement benefits, while also continuing to align the City as a competitive 

employer in the increasingly robust job market of the Silicon Valley.   

 

Background 

In June 2015, City Council awarded a contract to Koff & Associates for the purposes of conducting a 

comprehensive classification and compensation study of all non-sworn City of Menlo Park classifications.  

Preliminary results were provided to the City Council in February 2016, at which time the Council 

communicated the following guiding principles for upcoming labor negotiations with SEIU: 

 Using our 13 City labor market, the market median shall be the target for City of Menlo Park 

benchmark employees’ total compensation; and 

 For those employees whose total compensation is found to be below the market median, provide 

market-based adjustments to bring those employees up to the market median  

The guiding principles were founded on general practices and the importance of recruiting and retaining 

talented employees, during a competitive public and private sector job market. 

 

On November 10, 2015, City Council approved the terms of an agreement between the City of Menlo Park 

and SEIU and authorized the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with a 

term of November 10, 2015 through June 30, 2017.  Those terms included an agreement to reopen the 

MOU on March 1, 2016 on the single issue of wage increases, and stipulated that no special wage 

increases will be implemented without mutual agreement between the City and SEIU. The agreement 

further stipulated that if no agreement is reached on special wage increases, all SEIU classifications would 

receive an across the board salary increase of 2% effective the first full pay period after July 1, 2016. 
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The reopener on March 1, 2016 was intended to coincide with the completion of a Classification and 

Compensation Study conducted by Koff & Associates, which includes a total compensation survey of the 

13-comparator agencies for benchmark positions. While the study narrative has not yet been finalized, the 

Study concluded that 18 of the 61 classifications in SEIU have a total compensation package below the 

labor market median. 

 

SEIU represents approximately 148 non-sworn employees across 61 classifications throughout the City.  

The City’s and SEIU’s negotiation teams commenced negotiations on April 5, 2016.  The parties met four 

times and reached a Tentative Agreement (TA) on wages on May 25, 2016.  SEIU notified the City that the 

TA was ratified by the membership on May 31, 2016.   

 

 

Analysis 

The Tentative Agreement, Attachment A, is on wages only, between the City and SEIU and, if approved 

by the City Council, adjusts the salary ranges for all SEIU represented classifications effective July 10, 

2016, the first day of the first full pay period in July.   

 

In addition to the previously agreed to 2% across the board adjustment, the Tentative Agreement provides 

special wage adjustments to correct for positions that are currently below market median total 

compensation as calculated by Koff and Associates.  In most cases the market based adjustments apply 

to existing classifications with the exception of Account I/II, Information Technology Specialist I/II and 

Management Analyst I/II.  In these instances, Koff recommends the creation of new classifications for 

existing employees and then a lateral transition to the new classifications. For other classifications, there 

are instances where Koff recommends new job titles to reflect the current operating structure of the City 

while also achieving greater consistency with job titles in other cities.  

 

The Tentative Agreement for special wage adjustments is consistent with the City’s goal of maintaining a 

competitive total compensation package to attract and retain quality employees.   When surveyed across 

13 comparator agencies, Koff & Associates identified 18 of the 61 classifications represented by SEIU as 

receiving a total compensation package less than market median. Total compensation incorporates all 

aspects of compensation that accrue to the benefit of an individual employees such as base salary, 

pension, medical, dental, and paid time off. In order to correct for the under market compensation 

packages, the Tentative Agreement provides adjustments to classifications ranging from 0.1% to 9.6% as 

detailed in the Tentative Agreement.  

 

As mentioned earlier, the current MOU between SEIU and the City contains language that provides a 

2.0% across the board salary increase. The Tentative Agreement implements the 2% across the board 

salary increase to ensure that the City maintains its standing in the labor market total compensation. Since 

the date of Koff & Associates’ survey, several comparator cities have provided cost-of-living-adjustments 

(COLA) to their employees. COLAs are generally intended to offset the impact of inflation on an 

employee’s wages. To arrive at inflation for the Bay Area region, the City relies on calculations by the 

Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics, specifically the Consumer Price Index – All Urban Consumers.  For the 

12 month period measured from February 2015 to February 2016, the Consumer Price Index All Urban 

Consumers for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose region was +3.02%.  
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On June 6, 2016, in accordance with Council’s Public Input and Outreach Regarding Labor Negotiations 

policy, this staff report was posted to provide an opportunity for public comment prior to and during 

Council’s consideration of these amendments on June 21, 2016.   

 

Impact on City Resources 

This Tentative Agreement results in new cost to the City totaling $274,200. Of this amount, $67,300 is 

attributed to the special wage adjustments to bring 18 classifications up to market median total 

compensation. The balance, $206,900, results from an across the board salary adjustment of 2% which 

was provided for in the current MOU.  Given that the across the board adjustment was contained in the 

current MOU, $206,900 is included in the City Manager’s proposed 2016-17 budget and 10-year forecast. 

The balance, $67,300, will require the use of anticipated operating surplus. 

 

Environmental Review 

No environmental review is required. 

 

Public Notice 

Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 

hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Attachments 

A. Compensation Study 

B. Compensation Study Appendix “I” 

C. Tentative Agreement between the City of Menlo Park and SEIU 

D. Updated City/SEIU MOU Appendix “A” 

E. SEIU Salary Schedule 

 

 

Report prepared by: 

Lenka Diaz, Human Resources Manager  
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